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RE: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

- Felix, Amedeo

“¥ to:
'EllenJones@campbellreith.com'
13/11/2012 14:34
Hide Details
From: "Felix, Amedeo" <Amedeo.Felix@camden.gov.uk>
To: "'EllenJones@campbellreith.com' <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,

History: This message has been forwarded.
1 Attachment

=
image001.jpg

Building Control has no information on ground conditions, or any of the other information you
outline a need for.

Regards,

Amedeo Felix
Technical Support Officer

Telephone: 020 7974 5131

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 13 November 2012 12:13

To: BC Mail

Cc: RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Dear Sir/ Madam,

I am undertaking a geo-environmental desktop study of Greenwood Place, Highgate, NW5, National
Grid Reference: 528840F, 185400N.

I would be grateful if you could provide any information on the following:

What are the typical ground conditions in the site area?

What are the typical foundation solutions in the site area?

What is the site's current and previous land use history, including that of the adjacent land?
What is the water table level in the area?

What are the seasonal high and low water table levels?

Is / was there any mining / mineral / gravel extraction in the area?

Does fill material occur in the area?

Are there any methane problem in the area or any such history of problems?

Are soakaways or piped networks used in the area?

Do you hold any relevant investigation reports for the site?

Please could you advise if there is likely to be a charge for providing the above information. Thank
you for your time in advance

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web6702.htm 15/11/2012
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Kind regards,

Ellen

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RHI1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and
delete it and any attachments from your system.

This email has been sent from CampbellReith, which is the trading name of Campbell Reith Hill
LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales. Registered number,
0OC300082. Registered address: Friars Bridge Court, 41-45 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No
employee or agent is authorised to conclude any binding agreement(s) on behalf of Campbell Reith
Hill LLP with any other party by email unless it is an attachment on headed paper. Opinions,
conclusions and other information in this email and any attachments which do not relate to the
official business of Campbell Reith Hill LLP are neither given or endorsed by it. Please note that
email traffic and content may be monitored.

As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus
status of the transmitted information is not secure and cannot be guaranteed. If verification is
required please telephone the sender of the email.

This e-mail may contain information which is confidential, legally privileged and/or copyright
protected. This e- mail is intended for the addressee only. If you receive this in error, please contact
the sender and delete the material from your computer.

Click here to report this email as spam.

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web6702.htm 15/11/2012
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37-51 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road NW5 1LB
Helen McCarthy
e A
'Ellen Jones'
08/01/2013 14:29
Hide Details
From: Helen McCarthy <HelenMcCarthy@crossrail.co.uk>
To: "'Ellen Jones™ <ellenjones@campbellreith.com>,
Crossrail Ref: CRL-00-058283

Dear Ellen Jones,
37-51 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road NW5 1LB

Thank you for your enquiry of 03 December 2012, regarding the effect of the proposed Chelsea-Hackney Line
on the above property.

Crossrail Limited acts as an agent for Transport for London in the administration of the Chelsea-Hackney Line
Safeguarding Direction made by the Secretary of State for Transport in June 2008.

The current safeguarded route for the Chelsea-Hackney Line follows the District Line from Wimbledon in the
south to proposed new tunnels at Parsons Green. The new tunnels would continue via new stations at Kings
Road, Victoria, Piccadilly Circus, Tottenham Court Road, Kings Cross, Angel, Essex Road, Dalston, Hackney
and Homerton. The tunnels would surface in north London, south of Leytonstone, and then run on London
Underground's Central Line to Epping.

The above property falls outside the safeguarded limits of land shown on the plans accompanying the Directions
referred to above.

You may be aware that Crossrail (a scheme linking Maidenhead/Heathrow with Central London and
Shenfield/Abbey Wood) was enacted as the Crossrail Act 2008.

The design, planning and construction resources required to build Crossrail are very substantial and must
remain a priority, but the collective desire of the Department for Transport and Transport for London is to
maintain the safeguarding of the Chelsea-Hackney Line for development at some point in the future.
Construction on the Chelsea-Hackney Line could begin, at the very earliest, in 2024.

In addition, the latest project developments can be found on the Crossrail website
www.crossrail.co.uk/safequarding , which is updated on a regular basis.

| hope this information is helpful, but if you require any further assistance then please feel free to contact a
member of the Safeguarding Team on 0345 602 3813, or by email to safeguarding@crossrail.co.uk

Yours sincerely,

Helen McCarthy
Stakeholder Administrator

Crossrail Limited | 25 Canada Square | London | E14 5LQ
Tel: 020 3229 9100 | Helpdesk (24hr) 0345 602 3813

Click here to report this email as spam.
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11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5
Schultz, Weronika
€. to:
'EllenJones@campbellreith.com'
21/11/2012 14:22
Cc:
"Labarr, Winston"
Hide Details
From: "Schultz, Weronika" <Weronika.Schultz@camden.gov.uk>
To: "'EllenJones@campbellreith.com™ <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,

i

Cc: "Labarr, Winston" <Winston.Labarr@camden.gov.uk>
History: This message has been forwarded.

Dear Ellen,

Further to your contaminated land enquiry please note that there is a charge of £60.00 payable to LB
Camden for contaminated land searches. If you wish to proceed please make a payment online and
forward the copy of the payment confirmation to me by email. I attach a link to the payment pages:

https://forms.camden.gov.uk/cus/servlet/auth.Login?ask=no&auth=205&st=&redirect=https%3 A%
2F%2Fforms.camden.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.app%3Ftype%3D18773%26auth%3D205%
26ut%3 DA &anonymous=https%3 A%2F%2Fforms.camden.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.app%o
3Ftype%3D18773%26auth%3D205%26ut%

3DAX&context=Pay+fort+atcontaminated+land+enquiry

Please note that even though that the requested information will be used for a planning application
for Council development the charge still applies.

Regards,

Thank you

Weronika

Weronika Schultz
Environmental Health Officer LAPPC (Industrial Installations)

Telephone: 020 7974 2794

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 21 November 2012 13:04

To: Kypriotis, Angela

Cc: Labarr, Winston; RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: RE: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Dear Angela,

Thank you for your email. I apologise for the late response. I work for a company called

CampbellReith within their land quality team. We are undertaking a geo-environmental desk top
study of the area in question on behalf of our client Camden Council which may be used within a
planning application for the redevelopment of the site, however, nothing is concrete at this stage.

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web4436.htm 22/11/2012



We would be grateful if you could provide any information on the following:

Page 2 of 3

o Are there any landfill sites within a 1km radius of the site? If so, what is the location, period

of operation, type of fill and date of filling?

o Are there any ground gas problems in the area or any such history of problems?

e Do you have any knowledge of the previous site uses?

¢ Do you have any records regarding whether the site or any neighbouring areas are

contaminated?
¢ Are there any prosecutions for nuisance or special sites?
¢ Are there any authorised processes near the site?
o Are there any private water abstractions within 1km of the site?
e Are there any known problems with asbestos / radon / radioactivity?

¢ Do you hold any contamination investigation reports for the site?

If you do hold any information on the above, please could you advise if there is likely to be a charge

for providing the information. Thank you for your time in advance.
If you have any other questions please do not hesitate to contact me.
Many thanks,

FEllen

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RHI1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

From: "Kypriotis, Angela" <Angela.Kypriotis@camden.gov.uk>

To: "EllenJones@campbellreith.com' <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Cc: "Labarr, Winston" <Winston.[.abarr@camden.gov.uk>

Date: 19/11/2012 11:47

Subject: RE: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web4436.htm
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
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Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

- Schultz, Weronika

“¥ to:
'EllenJones@campbellreith.com'
29/11/2012 10:56
Hide Details
From: "Schultz, Weronika" <Weronika.Schultz@camden.gov.uk>
To: "'EllenJones@campbellreith.com' <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,

History: This message has been forwarded.
5 Attachments

235-LandUseHistoric.xlsx 235-EADraftLandfill250k.xIsx 235-LandUseHistoric.xIsx 235-PartBM.xIsx

@j

Greenwood place.doc

bear Ellen

i{E: Contaminated Land Enquiry 37-51 Greenwood Place NW5 1LLB

Further to your contaminated land search enquiry relating to the land at Greenwood Place, I would
like to confirm the following:

The site has not been determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990.

With regard to details under the Council’s Part IIA strategy, Camden is in a process to create a
revised Contaminated Land Database to identify and prioritise sites within the Borough with a
former potentially contaminative land use. Sites recorded on the database are not contaminated land
(as defined by Part ITA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990); rather they are considered as
having the potential to be contaminated land through their previous use. The Council is in the
process of identifying prioritised sites, confirming current land use and the existence of pollutant
linkages. The site at 37-51 Greenwood Place has been identified as a potential priority site and may
be investigated in the future.

Further to your enquiry, a historical record search was performed to determine the past land uses and
it appears that the following past industrial uses of plausible concern were carried out on or within
100 metres of the site:

Chemical Works, Depository (Depot), Laundry, Welding Works, Coach Building Works, Railway
Land, Garage, Unknown Industrial Use, Unknown Warehouse, Smithy, Bottling Works. Please see
the attachment for further reference.

According to our contaminated land risk categorisation, land on which several of the above
processes/activities were carried out is inherently considered to present a plausible risk of
contamination. It is considered likely that such land would exhibit substantial areas of significantly
elevated contamination levels widespread across the site with moderate magnitude to cause harm.
However, as mentioned, at present the site is not being investigated under Part IIA Contaminated
Land regime neither it is on our contaminated land register. Council has no present evidence that

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web3025.htm 29/11/2012
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confirms there are contamination issues affecting the site, other than the potentially contaminative
past uses of the land.

If the land was to be redeveloped in the future a planning condition would be imposed with a
requirement to carry out extensive site investigation (desk top, walkover and intrusive investigation)
and if necessary remediation works. However if the site remains in current state (established
development/hard-standing area) and there are no soft landscaped areas or gardens the site would not
be prioritised for investigation under contaminated land regime until change of use would be
proposed by a developer. Any future construction works involving excavation would immediately
have to be assessed and approved by a contaminated land officer under contaminated land planning
strategy.

Additional Information:

The Council holds no information on pollution incidents in the area.

No historical landfills identified within 1 km of the site. No information about ground gas problems.
The Council holds no information about water abstraction points.

There are no Local Authority Pollution Prevention and Control processes permitted under the
Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010 on or within 100 metres of the site.

It is highly likely that asbestos contamination will be found on site.

The Council has no record of any former site investigations on or directly adjacent to the site.

Information relating to radon and radioactivity should be sought from the Environment Agency.

Disclaimer:

The above response is provided from such information that is readily available to the Council and in
its possession. It is believed to be correct but the Council expressly gives no warranty in this respect
nor will the Council accept any liability whatsoever for any error, omission or loss occasioned
thereby to any person (whether or not the person requested the information) and in particular the
Council gives no warranty that it has researched all its relevant archives in order to respond to the
request for information.

I hope the information provided is sufficient, however if you require further clarification please
contact me directly.

I also attach an environmental search carried out by former contaminated land officer in 2004.

Regards,

Weronika Schultz

Weronika Schultz

Environmental Health Officer LAPPC (Industrial Installations)

Telephone: 020 7974 2794

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 23 November 2012 10:51

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web3025.htm 29/11/2012
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To: Schultz, Weronika
Cc: Labarr, Winston; RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com
Subject: Re: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Dear Weronika,

Please find attached payment confirmation for a contaminated land enquiry for Greenwood Place. If
you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards,

Ellen

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

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

Date: 21/11/2012 14:22

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

https://forms.camden.gov.uk/cus/servlet/auth.l ogin?ask=no&auth=205&st=&redirect=https%3 A%
2F%2Fforms.camden.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.app%3Ftype%3D18773%26auth%3D205%
26ut%3 DA &anonymous=https%3A%2F%2Fforms.camden.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.app%
3Ftype%3D18773%26auth%3D205%26ut%
3DAX&context=Pay+for+at+contaminated+land+enquiry

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

e Are there any ground gas problems in the area or any such history of problems?

e Do you have any knowledge of the previous site uses?

Do you have any records regarding whether the site or any neighbouring areas are

contaminated?

Are there any prosecutions for nuisance or special sites?

Are there any authorised processes near the site?

Are there any private water abstractions within 1km of the site?

Are there any known problems with asbestos / radon / radioactivity?

Do you hold any contamination investigation reports for the site?

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
0C300082. Registered address: Friars Bridge Court, 41-45 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No
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
~ Location Enquiries
Q“ v to:
'EllenJones@campbellreith.com'
14/11/2012 12:11
Hide Details
From: Location Enquiries <SMBLocationEnquiries@tfl.gov.uk>
To: "EllenJones@campbellreith.com™ <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,

History: This message has been replied to and forwarded.

1 Attachment

S1-6-141112 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5.pdf

London Underground Infrastructure Protection response to your communication attached.
Kind regards

Shahina Inayathusein

Information Manager
locationenquiries@tube.tfl.gov.uk
Tel: 0207 918 0016

Auto: 40016

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 14 November 2012 11:16

To: Location Enquiries

Subject: RE: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Hi Shahina,

Thank you for your email and advice.

Please find attached two more plans which will hopefully give you a clearer idea of the site's location.
The site boundary covers four existing buildings; the Greenwood Centre, AA Storage Depot, Highgate
Centre and Deane House.

If you need any further information please do not hesitate to contact me.

Many thanks for your help,

Ellen

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,
29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web6900.htm 15/11/2012



Page 2 of 4

RHI 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

From: Location Enquiries <SMBLocationEnquiries@tfl.gov.uk>

To: "EllenJones@campbellreith.com" <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Date: 14/11/2012 10:29

Subject: RE: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Hi Ellen,

To ensure that we provide you with the correct information can you please send a legible plan of the
locality to your search showing surrounding streets with your site clearly outlined or plotted. Also we
need the property name or no.

Please see our attached leaflet on how to request asset location enquiries which you may find helpful.
Kind regards

Shahina Inayathusein

Information Manager

London Underground Infrastructure Protection
Tel: 020 7918 0016

Email: locationenquiries@tube.tfl.gov.uk

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 13 November 2012 14:02

To: Location Enquiries

Cc: RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We are currently undertaking a desk study for a proposed development at Greenwood Place, Highgate
Road, NW5, National Grid Reference: 528840F, 185400N.

Below groundworks are likely to comprise a ground investigation (boreholes and trial pits). The
foundations of the proposed development are likely to be piled foundations.

Would you be able to tell us if there are any London Underground assets within the vicinity of the site?

Please find attached a site location plan (outlined in red in the middle of the large circle). If you have
any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.

I look forward to hearing from you.

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

If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and delete
it and any attachments from your system.

This email has been sent from CampbellReith, which is the trading name of Campbell Reith Hill LLP, a
limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales. Registered number, OC300082.
Registered address: Friars Bridge Court, 41-45 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No employee or
agent is authorised to conclude any binding agreement(s) on behalf of Campbell Reith Hill LLP with
any other party by email unless it is an attachment on headed paper. Opinions, conclusions and other
information in this email and any attachments which do not relate to the official business of Campbell
Reith Hill LLP are neither given or endorsed by it. Please note that email traffic and content may be
monitored.

As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus status
of the transmitted information is not secure and cannot be guaranteed. If verification is required please
telephone the sender of the email.
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The contents of the e-mail and any transmitted files are confidential and intended solely for the use of
the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. Transport for London hereby exclude any warranty
and any liability as to the quality or accuracy of the contents of this email and any attached transmitted
files. If you are not the intended recipient be advised that you have received this email in error and that
any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited., If you have
received this email in error please notify postmaster@tfl.gov.uk., This email has been sent from
Transport for London, or from one of the companies within its control within the meaning of Part V of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. Further details about TfL and its subsidiary companies
can be found at http://www.tfl.gov.uk/ourcompany, This footnote also confirms that this email message
has been swept for the presence of computer viruses.

s ke sfe st sfe st ske sk sk sfe s sk ke ske sk ske sk sk sk sk sfe st she sk ske sk sk sfe s she ke ske sk sk s sie s ke she sk sk s ske st sk sk sie sfe st sfe st ske sk ske sk s sfe ke she st sie sk sk sk ke sfe st she sk sk sfeoske sk seske sk skeske ks skok

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web6900.htm 15/11/2012
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Click here to report this email as spam.[attachment "IP leaflet No.2 Requesting location info.pdf"
deleted by Ellen Jones/CRH]

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



Date

Our Ref

Your Ref

To

14 November 2012
20878-S1-6-141112
11167

Ellen Jones
Campbell Reith

UNDERGROUND

London Underground Limited

EllenJones@campbellreith.com

Hello Ellen
Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5
Thank you for your communication of 13" February 2012.

| can confirm that London Underground has no assets within 50 metres of your site
as shown on the plan you provided.

Should you have any further enquiries, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Shahina Inayathusein

Information Manager

LUL Infrastructure Protection

E-mail: Locationenquiries@tube.tfl.gov.uk
Tel: 020 7918 0016



'_ 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry
| = | Ellen Jones barryc.walford, petroleum 27/02/2013 18:07
Rhyadd Watkins

Hi Barry,
Many thanks for assisting me with my earlier query.

Please find attached a site location plan for the search area. The site comprises three separate
buildings in close proximity which some | believe historically were part of the same site .

As discussed, would it be possible to undertake a search for the three buildings as part of one
request? As they are in close proximity | ideally would not want to pay for three separate searches.

Below is some information regarding the three buildings.

Highgate Day Centre, Highgate Road

Greenwood Centre/ Camden society, Greenwood Place
AA self storage, Greenwood Place

NW5 1LB

| am unsure if there was a different historical address for the site, however, | believe the Camden
Society/ Greenwood community centre used to be a heavy chemical works, AA self storage used to be
a building coach works and the Highgate Day Centre was previously used for terraced housing.

| would be most grateful if you could confirm whether the search for the three buildings could be
undertaken using the same request.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.
Many thanks,

Ellen

X X

11167-GIS001A-DSFig1_SiteLocn.pdf 11167 Greenwood Place Location Map.pdf

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com




| 7 RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry |
E=E Ellen Jones to: petroleum, barryc.walford 28/02/2013 14:16
Cc: Rhyadd Watkins

From: Ellen Jones/CRH

To: petroleum@london-fire.gov.uk, barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk,
Cc: Rhyadd Watkins/CRH@Campbellreith

Hello Barry,

Apologies for the late response.

Please find attached the search template required in order to obtain a quote. There are now only two
buildings | am concerned with; the Highgate Day Centre 19-37 Highgate Road NW5 1JY and
Greenwood Centre/Choices/Camden Society 37 Greenwood Place NW5 1LB.

I look forward to receiving a quote for the search. | would be most grateful if you don't undertake the
work prior to me confirming that we would be happy with the cost.

If you have any questions just ask.
Many thanks for your help.

Ellen

@j

11167 Petroleum Search.docx

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

Dear Ellen, 28/02/2013 08:34:13
From: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>
To: <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Date: 28/02/2013 08:34
Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Dear Ellen,
Thank you for your e-mail below and attachments.

I attach our revised Environment Search Request Template completion. Please list the full postal
address for each site to be searched. I will confirm the fees to be charged in due course based on the



information provided.

Please send your completed Environmental Search Request Form to the following web address
petroleum@london-fire.gov.uk and my e-mail address as well.

There are two fundamental reasons for the revision:-

1. The current financial climate together with a substantial increase in the number of requests
received forced the Authority to review the real cost of providing the service and to consider
how the continue to provide adequate resources to continue to provide the service within the
statutory and voluntary (the Express Service) time limits. We have not reviewed the system
or the fees since its inception in 2006. The new template shows the new fees that come into

force from 1 April 2012.

2. There are restrictions on how we are able to interrogate both our current and historic
databases. They are all purely based on the addresses at which petrol was stored in below
ground tanks at the time when a Petroleum Licence was in force for the premises. In many
cases when searching for the addresses requested, we may miss a historic address either
because it is now encompassed by a larger site following a redevelopment, or that at some
point the address has changed. To overcome this likelihood, we will now undertake to search
both current and historic addresses for a single location should this information be provided
at the time of making the request.

From 1" April 2012 onwards, we will only accept requests submitted on the new template. Please take
time to read the revised ‘Additional Information’ on Page 2 of the form, which we hope will clearly
explain the limitations of our searches, and how best to ensure that any locations that have or had
underground petrol tanks will be encompassed by your request.

Many thanks.

Regards

Barry

Barry Walford

Petroleum Group Admin. Manager
Fire Safety Regulation

London Fire Brigade

T: 020 8555 1200 x30858

F: 020 7960 3624

E: barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk

Visit our website at www.london-fire.gov.uk

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 27 February 2013 18:08

To: WALFORD, BARRY; Petroleum

Cc: RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Barry,



Many thanks for assisting me with my earlier query.

Please find attached a site location plan for the search area. The site comprises three separate
buildings in close proximity which some | believe historically were part of the same site.

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

NWS5 1LB

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

If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and delete it and any attachments from your syster

This email has been sent from CampbellReith, which is the trading name of Campbell Reith Hill LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in Engl
Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No employee or agent is authorised to conclude any binding agreement(s) on behalf of Campbell Reith Hill LLI
other information in this email and any attachments which do not relate to the official business of Campbell Reith Hill LLP are neither given or endor



As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus status of the transmitted information is not secure :

For fire safety advice please go to http://www.london-fire.gov.uk/Y ourSafety.asp

EMAIL DISCLAIMER: The Information in the email may contain confidential or privileged
materials. Please read the full email disclaimer notice at
http://www.london-fire.gov.uk/EmailDisclaimer.asp.

Click here to report this email as spam.[attachment "Environmental Survey Request Form
(Revised 29 3 12).docx" deleted by Ellen Jones/CRH]

If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and delete it and any attachments from your systei

This email has been sent from CampbellReith, which is the trading name of Campbell Reith Hill LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in Eng
Registered number, OC300082. Registered address: Friars Bridge Court, 41-45 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No employee or agent is auth
any binding agreement(s) on behalf of Campbell Reith Hill LLP with any other party by email unless it is an attachment on headed paper. Opinions,
other information in this email and any attachments which do not relate to the official business of Campbell Reith Hill LLP are neither given or endol
note that email traffic and content may be monitored.

As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus status of the transmitted information is not secure |
guaranteed. If verification is required please telephone the sender of the email.



| 7 RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry |
E=E Ellen Jones to: barryc.walford 01/03/2013 11:51
Cc: brian.humm, RhyaddWatkins

From: Ellen Jones/CRH

To: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>,

Cc: brian.humm@Ilondon-fire.gov.uk, RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com
Hi Barry,

Many thanks for your email.

We are having trouble confirming the exact numbers of the buildings that need to be searched. For the
building at Greenwood Place the nhumbers range between 25-37. Would it be possible to check the
buildings that come up on your register with the site location plan attached please ? (All buildings
within the red line boundary excluding the AA storage building need to be searched).

Apologies for the confusion. If you should have any questions please feel free to give me a call.
Many thanks for your help.

Ellen

% o

11167 Greenwood PEe Location Map.pdf 11167 Petroleum Search.docx

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

Hi Ellen, 01/03/2013 09:36:19
From: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>
To: <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Cc: <RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com>, <brian.humm@london-fire.gov.uk>
Date: 01/03/2013 09:36
Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Ellen,

Further to your e-mail below, I have spoken with my manager, Brian Humm. It has been agreed that
we will charge a single fee (£70.00 +VAT /£140.00 + VAT as per the fees listed on the submitted
Environment Search Request form) to undertake the search for each of the buildings listed below.
Both of these buildings have separate file numbers on our Fire Safety database.



Please confirm by e-mail if you are happy for me to proceed with these searches on this basis or if
you decide to cancel your request. I will not start any work on these searches until I hear from you
either way.

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
Sent: 28 February 2013 14:16

To: Petroleum; WALFORD, BARRY

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

| look forward to receiving a quote for the search. | would be most grateful if you don't undertake the
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

I attach our revised Environment Search Request Template completion. Please list the full postal address for
each site to be searched. I will confirm the fees to be charged in due course based on the information provided.

Please send your completed Environmental Search Request Form to the following web address

petroleum@london-fire.gov.uk and my e-mail address as well.
There are two fundamental reasons for the revision:-

1. The current financial climate together with a substantial increase in the number of requests received
forced the Authority to review the real cost of providing the service and to consider how the continue to provide
adequate resources to continue to provide the service within the statutory and voluntary (the Express Service)
time limits. We have not reviewed the system or the fees since its inception in 2006. The new template shows the

new fees that come into force from 1" April 2012.

2. There are restrictions on how we are able to interrogate both our current and historic databases. They are
all purely based on the addresses at which petrol was stored in below ground tanks at the time when a Petroleum
Licence was in force for the premises. In many cases when searching for the addresses requested, we may miss a
historic address either because it is now encompassed by a larger site following a redevelopment, or that at some
point the address has changed. To overcome this likelihood, we will now undertake to search both current and

historic addresses for a single location should this information be provided at the time of making the request.

From 1" April 2012 onwards, we will only accept requests submitted on the new template. Please take time to
read the revised ‘Additional Information’ on Page 2 of the form, which we hope will clearly explain the
limitations of our searches, and how best to ensure that any locations that have or had underground petrol tanks

will be encompassed by your request.
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

As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus status of the transmitted information is not secure ¢



If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and delete it and any attachments from your systel

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

As this e-mail has been transmitted over a public network the accuracy, completeness and virus status of the transmitted information is not secure .
guaranteed. If verification is required please telephone the sender of the email.



| = RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry |
E=E Ellen Jones to: barryc.walford
Cc: brian.humm, RhyaddWatkins

Cc: brian.humm@Ilondon-fire.gov.uk, RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com

From: Ellen Jones/CRH
To: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>,
Hi Barry,

No problem | appreciate you must be extremely busy.

01/03/2013 15:45

Please find attached an up to date search request form. If the cost is still £70.00 +VAT /£140.00 + VAT

| would be happy to proceed.
Look forward to hearing from you.
Kind regards,

Ellen

@j

11167 Petroleum Search.docx

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

Cc: <brian.humm@Ilondon-fire.gov.uk>, <RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com>

Hi Ellen,
From: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>
To: <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Date: 01/03/2013 13:29

Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

01/03/2013 13:29:20

Hi Ellen,

Thank you for your e-mail below.

Unfortunately, I am unable to look up the information that you require due to time and workload
constraints. We will search on whatever address data that you submit and cost it and then inform you

accordingly.

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
Sent: 01 March 2013 11:52

To: WALFORD, BARRY

Cc: HUMM, BRIAN; RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Barry,

Many thanks for your email.

We are having trouble confirming the exact numbers of the buildings that need to be searched. For
the building at Greenwood Place the numbers range between 25-37. Would it be possible to check the
buildings that come up on your register with the site location plan attached please? (All buildings within

the red line boundary excluding the AA storage building need to be searched).
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

Cc: <RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com>, <brian.humm@london-fire.gov.uk>
Date: 01/03/2013 09:36
Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Ellen,

Further to your e-mail below, I have spoken with my manager, Brian Humm. It has been agreed that we will
charge a single fee (£70.00 +VAT /£140.00 + VAT as per the fees listed on the submitted Environment Search
Request form) to undertake the search for each of the buildings listed below. Both of these buildings have
separate file numbers on our Fire Safety database.

Please confirm by e-mail if you are happy for me to proceed with these searches on this basis or if you decide to
cancel your request. I will not start any work on these searches until I hear from you either way.

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



Page 1 of 1

PETROLEUM ENVIRONMENTAL ENQUIRY DETAIL FORMS:- GREENWOOD
- CENTRE/CAMDEN SOCIETY, 25-37 GREENWOOD PLACE, NW5 1LB &
¥ HIGHGATE DAY CENTRE, 19-37 HIGHGATE ROAD, NW5 1JY
barryc.walford
to:
EllenJones
25/03/2013 16:12
Hide Details
From: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>
To: <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
History: This message has been forwarded.

2 Attachments
]

02-015892 B11 ES response to Campbell Reith Hill LLP 25 03 13.docx

@j

02-018794 B11 ES response to Campbell Reith Hill LLP 25 03 13.docx

Hi Ellen,

Please find the attached electronic copy of the covering letter and Petroleum Environmental Enquiry Detail
Form for each of the above sites.

I will arrange for a separate invoice for a total of £70.00 + VAT for each site to be sent to you in due course
under separate cover from our Finance Office

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

For fire safety advice please go to http://www.london-fire.gov.uk/YourSafety.asp

EMAIL DISCLAIMER: The Information in the email may contain confidential or privileged materials.
Please read the full email disclaimer notice at http://www.london-fire.gov.uk/EmailDisclaimer.asp.

Click here to report this email as spam.

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes714591/~web6448.htm 25/03/2013



| = Re: FW: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry [
E=E Ellen Jones to: barryc.walford 01/03/2013 17:09
Cc: brian.humm, RhyaddWatkins, petroleum

From: Ellen Jones/CRH
To: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>,
Cc: brian.humm@Ilondon-fire.gov.uk, RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com,

petroleum@london-fire.gov.uk

Hi Barry,

| can confirm we are happy for you to undertake the two separate searches for the Highgate Day
Centre and the Greenwood Centre/Camden Society.

Kind regards,

Ellen

Ellen Jones
Graduate Environmental Scientist

CampbellReith

Raven House,

29 Linkfield Lane,
Redhill, Surrey
RH1 1SS

Tel +44 (0)1737 784500
www.campbellreith.com

Hi Ellen, 01/03/2013 16:45:22
From: <barryc.walford@london-fire.gov.uk>
To: <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
Cc: <RhyaddWatkins @campbellreith.com>, <brian.humm@london-fire.gov.uk>
Date: 01/03/2013 16:45
Subject: FW: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Ellen,
Thank you for your e-mail.

Can you please confirm, via e-mail, that you understand that we will charge the normal fee (£70.00
+VAT /£140.00 + VAT) for each search on the Highgate Day Centre and the Greenwood Centre/
Camden Society? I will proceed with the search process upon your confirmation.

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
Sent: 01 March 2013 15:46

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
Cc: <brian.humm@london-fire.gov.uk>, <RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com>

Date: 01/03/2013 13:29
Subject: RE: 11167 Petroleum Search Request Enquiry

Hi Ellen,



Thank you for your e-mail below.

Unfortunately, I am unable to look up the information that you require due to time and workload constraints.
We will search on whatever address data that you submit and cost it and then inform you accordingly.

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
Cc: <RhyaddWatkins@campbelireith.com>, <brian.humm@london-fire.gov.uk>

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
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[attachment "11167 Petroleum Search.docx" deleted by Ellen Jones/CRH]



If you have received this e-mail in error please immediately notify the sender by email and delete it and any attachments from your syste:

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
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RE: Planning Enquiry (Ref. ENQ\09113) - 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road,

- NWS5

A Planning
to:
'EllenJones@campbellreith.com'’
22/11/2012 12:11
Hide Details
From: Planning <Planning@camden.gov.uk>
To: "'EllenJones@campbellreith.com' <EllenJones@campbellreith.com>,
History: This message has been forwarded.

1 Attachment

How to search for planning records on Camden web pages - August 201 1.pdf

Dear Ellen,

Thank you for your enquiry, please accept our apologies for the delay in providing you with
a response.

The Council’s Online Planning Search enables you to find planning applications using a
wide variety of search options. | would recommend looking at the planning history of the site
to establish the previous uses and current use (should the most recent permission have
been implemented). You can also view the planning applications online and any plans,
drawings and documents associated with the applications. | have attached some guidance
notes on how to do this.

You would need to contact the contaminated land team to establish whether the land is
contaminated and if there were any tanks on the land. More information can be found in the
frequently asked questions section on this page.

Please use the following pages on our website to check if the building is listed or is in a
conservation area:

e Find a listed building
e Find a conservation area

More information on archeological priority areas can be found in Camden’s Local Development
Framework Development Policies Document 2010 (adopted version) in policy DP25 and there is a map on
page 122 which shows the areas.

| trust this information is of assistance. Should you have any further queries please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards,

Sally Shepherd

Planning Officer

Advice and Consultation Team
Planning and Regeneration

Culture and Environment Directorate
London Borough of Camden

Telephone: 0207 974 4672

file:///C:/Users/ellenj/AppData/Local/Temp/notes7A9C63/~web0262.htm 06/12/2012
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Web: camden.gov.uk

6! Floor

Camden Town Hall
Judd Street

London WC1H 8ND

The London Borough of Camden has a waste minimisation policy. Please do not print out this email.

From: EllenJones@campbellreith.com [mailto:EllenJones@campbellreith.com]
Sent: 13 November 2012 12:09

To: Planning

Cc: RhyaddWatkins@campbellreith.com

Subject: ENQ\09113 - 11167 Greenwood Place, Highgate Road, NW5

Dear Sir/ Madam,

| am undertaking a geo-environmental desk study review of Greenwood Place, Highgate, NW5, National Grid
Reference: 528840F, 185400N.

| would be grateful if you could provide any information on the following:

o What is the site's current and previous land use history, including that of the adjacent land?

Are there any concerns about the site or surrounding areas being contaminated?

Are there any planning constraints placed on the site, for example, Listed Buildings, archaeology, etc?

Do you hold any plans or drawings relating to the site which we could have access to?

Have there been any tanks containing hazardous substances stored on site?

If you are aware of any other information (factual, anecdotal etc) that you believe would better inform the
study, please feel free to add this or any other comments.

Please could you advise if there is likely to be a charge for providing the above information. Thank you for
your time in advance.

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
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This email has been sent from CampbellReith, which is the trading name of Campbell Reith Hill LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in
England and Wales. Registered number, OC300082. Registered address: Friars Bridge Court, 41-45 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NZ. No
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secure and cannot be guaranteed. If verification is required please telephone the sender of the email.

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
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LONDEN BOROUGH OF CAMDEN

CAMPBELLREITH HILL LLP

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

FACTUAL REPORT ON A GROUND INVESTIGATION

HIGHGATE AND GREENWOOD DAY CENTRES

GREENWOOD PLACE
KENTISH TOWN
LONDON NW5
Report Reference No. C12974 June 2013

INTRODUCTION

The London Borough of Camden, the client, intends to demolish their existing
Highgate Day Centre and Greenwood Community Centre buildings, Greenwood Place, Kentish
Town, London NW5, and construct two new buildings of three and six storeys in height with new
access ways, cycle parking and soft landscaped areas.

Ground Engineering Limited was commissioned by the client, under the guidance
of consulting engincers CampbellReith Hill LLP, the ‘Engineer’ to carry out a ground
investigation and produce a factual report. The investigation was to determine the nature and
geotechnical properties of the underlying soils in addition to environmental sampling, monitoring

and analysis.



LOCATION, TOPOGRAPHY, GEOLOGY AND HYDROGEOLOGY OF THE SITE

The site is bisected by the north-west to south-cast trending part of Greenwood
Place and is positioned on the south-western side of Highgate Road, London NWS5,
approximately 200m north-west of Kentish Town London Underground railway station. The site
is centred at National Grid Reference TQ 2884 8540. A site location plan is presented in
Appendix 1.

The near-rectangular site has an approximately 75m long frontage along the south-
western side of Highgate Road and extends to the south-west by up to 80m. Greenwood Place
crosses the site near centrally in a south-east to north-west orientation, then turns to border the
north-western edge of the site and forms a junction with Highgate Road to the immediate north of
the site. A church, named Christ Apostolic Church, was to the immediate south-east.

At the time of the investigation the north-eastern half of the site area contained
Highgate Day Centre and Lensham House. Both of these buildings were in use at the time of the
investigation. Lensham House was adorned with signs marked A&A Storage and Business
Centre. This building, although located within the site, does not form part of the proposed
redevelopment area which it bisects. The south-western half of the site contained Greenwood
Community Centre that was disused. The day centre and community centre buildings were single
and two storey structures whereas Lensham House was up to three storeys high with several large
metal roller shutter doors and loading bays at ground level. All three buildings were of brick
construction.

A car park was positioned in the north-eastern corner of the site, associated with
Highgate Day Centre. Four car parking spaces, some loading bays and motorcycle bays were
positioned along the south-western side of Greenwood Place. Remaining parts of the site
comprised pathways and peripheral soft landscaping.

Various immature to mature trees were located in landscaped areas along the
north-eastern boundary and in the northern comer of the site including Eucalyptus, Beech,

Cherry, Cotoneaster, Laburnum, Laurel and Maple. A row of mature Cypress trees was
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positioned immediately beyond the southern comer of the site and along the south-western side
of Greenwood Place. A small garden to the rear of Highgate Day Centre in the eastern corner of
the site contained abundant Bamboo. A stand of Japanese Knotweed was to the rear of Lensham
House beyond the southern corner of the site and was established behind and on top of a brick
retaining wall that bordered the lower level of the Greenwood Place roadway.

Ground levels generally fell across the site towards the south-west from
approximately 38mOD alongside Highgate Road, reducing to some 36.5mOD to the rear of
Greenwood Community Centre. The site was largely surrounded by brick walls, some of which
were retaining walls of up to 1.5m high to accommodate the change in levels between higher
ground to the north-east and lower ground to the south-west.

The 1934 geological map for the area shows the site to be immediately underlain
by the solid geology of the London Clay. A tributary of the River Fleet is indicated to flow
towards the south-west along the north-castern edge of the site beneath Greenwood Place and
turn beneath the western corner of the site to flow towards the south. This tributary has since
been apparently re-routed and culverted. Service plans provided by the Engineer include a sewer
plan depicting a trunk combined sewer and a storm relief sewer flowing to the south-east of the
site beneath Highgate Road.

The 2006 geological map for the area at 1:50,000 scale, Sheet 256, shows the site
to be immediately underlain by the London Clay Formation, but with areas of higher ground to
the north-east also indicated with a propensity for Head or ‘hill wash’ deposits. An area of

worked ground is also marked immediately beyond the western corner or the site.
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SITE WORK

The locations of the intrusive works were agreed on site with the Engineer.

The investigation was undertaken following the protocols detailed in British
Standards (BS) ‘Code of Practice for Site Investigations’ (BS5930:1999+A2:2010) and ‘Methods
of test for soils for engineering purposes’ (BS1377:1990). All of the intrusive works were
undertaken under the supervision of a Geo-environmental Engineer. The works were carried out
making due reference to generic and site specific risk assessments, and method statements. Prior
to commencement of intrusive works, available statutory service plans were sourced by Ground
Engineering Limited and consulted, and a cable avoidance tool (CAT) was used to confirm the
absence of buried services at each exploratory hole position.

The exploratory hole positions are depicted on the site plan in Appendix 1. The
working areas for two of the exploratory holes (BH2 and DCS1) comprised four parking spaces
and a motorcycle bay alongside the roadway of Greenwood Place. These boreholes were
undertaken under the supervision of an operative provided by Ground Engineering Limited with
New Roads and Strect Works Act accreditation. Parking suspensions for all four parking spaces
and the motorcycle bays, a building licence and a hoarding licence were obtained by Ground
Engineering Limited to facilitate the works for these areas as required by the London Borough of
Camden. Traffic management with appropriate roadway works signage and temporary fences
were also employed for the duration of the works where required.

The exploratory hole records are presented in Appendix 2 and give the
descriptions and depths of the various strata encountered, details of all samples taken, results of
the in-situ tests, installation details and the groundwater conditions observed during
boring/excavation and on completion. The ground levels at each exploratory hole position were
related to Ordnance Datum (OD) using levelling equipment and the National Grid co-ordinates
for each position were calculated from on-site measurements, as presented on the exploratory

hole records.
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Cable Percussive Boreholes

Two boreholes (BH1 to BH2) were undertaken by a standard cable percussive
boring rig between 29" April and 2" May 2013. Prior to boring at each position, starter pits
were dug to 1.20m below ground level using hand tools, in order to ensure the absence of buried
services. Diamond drilling equipment with 200mm diameter core barrel was employed to
remove the surface asphalt, near surface granite setts and concrete at the location of BH2.

The boreholes were then advanced using weighted shell and claycutter tools,
initially working within 150mm diameter casing. The boreholes were completed at the intended
depths of 35.00m (BH1) and 20.00m (BH2) below ground level.

Standard penetration tests were undertaken in order to give an indication of the in-
situ relative density/shear strength of the soils encountered at the instructed intervals. The test
was made by driving a 50mm diameter solid cone point (C) or similar diameter open shoe and
split spoon sampler (S) into the soil at the base of the borehole by means of an automatic trip
hammer weighing 63.50kg falling freely through 760mm. The penetration resistance was
determined as the number of blows (N) required to drive the tool the final 300mm of a total
penetration of 450mm into the soil ahead of the borehole. Where the full penetration was not
achieved the actual penetration and the number of blows were recorded.

Undisturbed samples (U} nominally 100mm in diameter were taken in clay, using
thin wall steel samplers (UT100s), at the instructed intervals. The ends of the samples were
capped and sealed to maintain them in as representative condition as possible during transit to the
laboratory.

Representative small (D) and bulk (B) disturbed samples of soil were taken from
the boring tools at regular intervals throughout the depth of the boreholes. The supervising Geo-
environmental Engineer also took environmental samples (ES) in polycarbonate pots, glass jars

and vials at regular intervals within made ground and underlying naturally deposited soil.
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On-site screening of soil samples was undertaken by the Geo-environmental
Engineer using a photo-ionisation detector (PID). The results of the PID screening are tabulated
to the rear of the exploratory hole records.

Within BH1, an indication of the shear strength of clay soils within the recovered
samples to 6m depth was made using a hand shear vane (V) at regular intervals and the readings
are presented on the BHI record. A pocket penetrometer was also used to provide an indication
of apparent cohesion of clay soils at regular intervals on recovered samples from BH1. These
tests were not undertaken on the in-situ clay soils, and the results should only be used as a guide
to the shear strength.

Samples of groundwater (W) were recovered from the boreholes once sufficient
water had accumulated for collection.

On completion of the boreholes, SOmm diameter pipes were installed with gravel
response zones to depths of 4.70m in BH1 and 4.15m in BH2 as instructed by the Engineer.
Above this, each borehole was backfilled with bentonite. A gas tap was installed in the top of the
standpipes, as instructed. A protective stopcock cover was concreted into the ground flush with
the surface over each installation. Below the installations, the boreholes were backfilled with

bentonite. Excess spoil was removed from site and disposed of at a licensed facility.

Window Sample Boreholes

Five window sample borcholes, DCS1, DCS2, DCS2A, DCS3 and DCS4, were
undertaken by a dynamic continuous sampling rig on 29" and 30" April 2013. Prior to window
sampling at each position a starter pit was dug to 1.20mbgl using hand tools in order to ensure the
absence of buried services. Diamond drilling equipment with 200mm diameter core barrels was
employed to remove the surface asphalt and concrete at the locations of DCS1 and DCS4.
Representative small disturbed samples of soil were taken in the starter pits at regular intervals.

The window sample boreholes were then formed by a small track-mounted

window sampling and super heavy dynamic probing rig. Personal gas monitors and fume

C12974 Page 6 of 10



extraction equipment was employed when undertaking DCS4 that was located inside the
Greenwood Community Centre Building that was a confined space.

Exploratory hole DCS2 was abandoned due to refusal in conerete at 2.22mbgl, and
an alternative location, DCS2ZA was completed at the intended 6.00m depth, as were DCSI,
DCS3 and DCS4. Casing was installed to 4.00mbgl in DCS1 to maintain the hole sidewalls.

The window sampling equipment consisted of drive-in sample tubes of specially
constructed and strengthened steel, lined with a plastic core-liner. The barrels were initially of
87mm internal diameter and were reduced in diameter with successive barrels with increasing
depth. Upon extraction, a continuous profile of the soil was obtained within the plastic liners.

Standard penetration tests (SPTs) were undertaken at regular intervals in order to
give an indication of the in-situ density or strength of the material. Each test was made by
driving a 50mm diameter split spoon sampler into the soil at the base of the borehole by means of
an automatic trip hammer weighing 63.50kg falling freely through 750mm. The penetration
resistance was determined as the number of blows ‘N” required to drive the tool the final 300mm
of a total penetration of 450mm into the soil ahead of the window sample hole. In coarse or hard
soils, the split tube sampler (SPT(S}) was replaced by a 60° apex cone (SPT(C)). The SPT results
are tabulated to the rear of the exploratory hole records.

The plastic liners recovered from the window sample boreholes were logged and
sampled on-site by a supervising Geo-environmental Engineer. Representative small disturbed
(D) samples of soil were taken at regular intervals throughout the depth of each borehole.
Environmental samples (ES) were taken in polycarbonate pots and glass jars at regular intervals
within made ground and into the top layer of underlying naturally deposited soils.

On-site screening of soil samples was undertaken by the Geo-environmental
Engineer using a photo-ionisation detector (PID). The results of the PID screening are tabulated
to the rear of the exploratory hole records.

An indication of the shear strength of clay soils within the recovered liners was
made using a hand shear vane (V) at regular intervals and the readings are presented on the

window sample hole records. A pocket penetrometer was also used to provide an indication of
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apparent cohesion of clay soils at regular intervals in DCS1, DCS3 and DCS4. These tests were
not undertaken on the in-situ clay soils, and the results should only be used as a guide to the shear
strength.

On completion 50mm diameter standpipes were installed to depths of 3.00m in
DCS1; 2.00m in DCS2A and DCS4; and 1.00m in DCS3, for future gas and groundwater
monitoring. The standpipes were slotted to within 1.00m depth (DCS1, DCS2A and DCS4) or
0.60m depth (DCS3) and surrounded with a pea gravel annulus. A bentonite seal was placed
above the pea gravel annulus, a gas tap inserted and a protective steel stopcock cover concreted in

place at ground level.

Monitoring

Four return visits were made on 13%, 20™, 29" May and 3" June 2013 to monitor
methane, carbon dioxide and oxygen gas levels in the standpipes using a GasData GFM 430
series gas monitor. Ambient pressures and flow rates were recorded together with the depth to
groundwater. A photo-ionisation detector (PID) was used to monitor for volatile organic
compounds (VOCs). Groundwater samples were obtained where possible from each standpipe
during each visit and were sealed within 1 litre glass bottles. Due to vehicles obstructing the
location of BH2 during these four visits, additional visits were undertaken for the BH2 standpipe
that was successfully monitored on 13" June 2013. The results of all monitoring visits

monitoring are presented in Appendix 3.
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LABORATORY TESTING

The samples were inspected in the laboratory and assessments of the soil
characteristics have been taken into account during preparation of the exploratory hole records.
The soils have been described in accordance with B§5930:1999+A2:2010. The geotechnical and
chemical testing schedules were devised by the Engineer. The testing was completed within
UKAS accredited laboratories.

The geotechnical test results are presented in Appendix 4 whilst the results of the

chemical tests and gas sample tests are presented in Appendix 5.

Geotechnical Laboratory Testing

The samples recovered from the exploratory holes were tested in accordance with
the recommendations of British Standard BS1377:1990 ‘Methods of tests for soils for civil
engineering purposes’.

The moisture contents and index properties of selected soil samples were
determined as a guide to soil classification and behaviour. The liquid limit was determined by a
cone penetrometer,

The particle size distribution of a sclected sample was obtained by wet sieve
analysis and sedimentation by pipette. The results of this tests are given as combined particle
size distribution curve.

The particle size distribution of a selected sample was determined by wet sieve
analysis. The results of this test is given as a particle size distribution curve.

Immediate undrained triaxial compression tests were made on selected
undisturbed samples at single confining cell pressures specified by the Engineer. The moisture
content and bulk density of the specimens were also determined. A single undisturbed sample of
fissured clay fragmented on extrusion in the laboratory and the recovered specimen was not
suitable for triaxial testing. A hand shear vane test was undertaken as an alternative and the
result, taken as an average of three readings, is presented in the summary table.
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Selected samples of soil and water were analysed to determine the concentration
of soluble sulphates. The pH values were determined using an electrometric method. Selected
samples of soil were also tested for total sulphur and acid soluble sulphate. The testing was

undertaken using the methods prescribed in BRE Digest SD1 (2005).

Chemical Laboratory Testing

The UKAS MCERTS accredited laboratory, Chemtest, was used for the analysis of
soil samples recovered during the site work.

Twelve soil samples were tested for a suite that included arsenic, cadmium,
chromium, copper, nickel, lead, mercury, selenium, zinc, moisture content, speciated PAH (16
plus benzo[j]fluoranthene), gasoline range organics (>C6-C10), extractable petroleum
hydrocarbons (>C10-C25 and >C25-C40), sulphate (total), sulphide, phenols monohydric (total
of phenol, cresol and xylenol), total cyanide and pH. A single sample was separately tested for
speciated PAH.

Eleven soil samples were screened for the presence of asbestos. Four soil samples
were tested for speciated TPH CWG, three soil samples were tested for total organic carbon and
three soil samples were tested for the fraction of organic carbon.

Selected water samples were tested for a suite that included arsenic, cadmium,
chromium, copper, nickel, lead, mercury, selenium, zine, hexavalent chromium, total cyanide,
free cyanide, thiocyanate, total PAH, total TPH, total phenol, soluble sulphate, sulphide, free

sulphur and pH. These samples were also tested for speciated TPH CWG and VOCs.

D,

GROUND ENGINEERING LIMITED

. E. M. DAVIES C.M. J. EBELING
B.Sc. (Hons.), M.Sc,, M.Sc.(Eng.), M.AE.G.,
C.Geol,, F.G.S.

C.Geol., F.G.S., €0 S.
Director

Senior Geotechnical Engineer

C12974 Page 10 of 10



Appendix 1

Site Location Plan

Exploratory Hole Location Plan
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Exploratory Hole Location Plan
Taken from plan provided by the engineer
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Appendix 2

Exploratory Hole Records

Results of On-site PID Screening
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